Budget Committee Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, March 10, 2020

5:30 p.m.

Richardson Room, Rockport Town Office

Minutes

> Present: Megan Brackett, Finance Director; William Post, Town Manager; Jeffrey
Charland, Budget Committee Chair; Jerod Cronkite, Budget Committee Member;
Mark Kelley, Budget Committee Member; Eric Boucher, Budget Committee
Member; Doug Cole, Select Board Member; Linda Greenlaw, Town Clerk;
Geoffrey Parker, Budget Committee Member; Helen Shaw, Budget Committee
Vice-Chair; Kerry Leichtman, Assessor; Michael Young, Public Works Director;
Ben Blackmon, Library Director.

» Call Meeting to Order

o Meeting was called to order by Jeffrey Charland at 5:30 p.m.

» New Business

o Review Select Board proposed Budget and develop a list of any
recommended changes
= Jeffrey Charland went through some keys dates as well as process
for the review meeting.
o Key Dates:

o

(@]

March 23, 2020: Select Board will meet to review
the Budget Committee recommendations, meeting
to start at 5:30 at the Opera House. Following this
meeting will be the Select Board’s formal votes on
the budget warrant articles.

March 24, 2020: Budget Committee to meet at 5:30
p.m. at the Opera House for the formal votes on the
budget warrant articles.

April 10, 2020: Paper’s are due back to the Town
Clerk for anyone that wishes to serve on the
committee again that have a term expiring.

April 30, 2020: School Budget meeting at the High
School.

e Process:

o

Jeffrey Charland proposed that the committee start
with the Administration Budget and forward from
there. All agreed with this process.

= Budget Review:

= Administration: No changes, no discussion.

= Town Manager: Town Manager reviewed the changes that were
made by the Select Board.



e Geoffrey Parker stated he would rather see legal fees stay at
$40,000 and look at the position instead of the person.
Town Manager explained our firm has seen a reduction in
the way that we are using them, which should reduce our
overall costs.

e Helen Shaw asked about the parameters of the current legal
contract. She asked that if we don’t use the full value of the
contract, do we get money back? Town Manager stated that
we do not.

e Motion by Geoffrey Parker: To increase the legal line back
to $40,000. Seconded by Helen Shaw.

o Vote: 1 Yes, 5No, 0 Abstain

e Jerod Cronkite asked Town Manager if he felt that $35,000
was enough for legal services. Town Manager expressed
that he would be ok with it.

Town Clerk: Town Manager reviewed the Select Board changes.

e Helen Shaw asked Linda Greenlaw if she felt she had
enough money for election cost, to which Linda answered
yes.

e Eric Boucher stated that he is little uncomfortable with the
excise tax number, but he is ok with it.

e No motions or changes to this budget.

Planning: No changes, no discussion.

Finance: No changes, no discussion.

Assessing: No changes, no discussion.

Town Office Building: No changes, no discussion.
Insurance:

o Jeffrey Charland asked about the reduction in insurance
costs.

o Town Manager stated that is because of good loss
history as well as both the Town Manager and
Finance Director being certified through Maine
Municipal Association.
o No changes.
General Assistance: There was some discussion on housing
assistance, but no changes are recommended.
Police Department: No changes, no discussion.
Fire Department: Town Manager reviewed the changes from the
Select Board.

e Geoffrey Parker brough up the changes in the radio reserve
deposit and stated that we will need to change to digital
radios at some point. Town Manager agreed with this that
is why we left $5,000 in the budget to be deposited to the
reserve account.

e No changes.

West Rockport Fire Station: No changes, no discussion.



= Other Public Safety Services:

Geoffrey Parker asked about the North East Mobile Health
Services contract. Town Manager explained that the Select
Board approved the contract with them at the prior nights
board meeting.

No changes.

= Animal Control: No changes, no discussion.
= Harbor:

Jeffrey Charland explained that increased development may
produce more revenue. Geoffrey Parked stated that he does
not feel that the Harbor should be forced to make a profit.
Jerod Cronkite added that he feels it should at least break
even, but that it is a great asset to the Town.

Jeffrey Charland asked that Town staff and the Harbor
Committee review this to ensure we are getting a fair
exchange for services offered.

No changes.

= Public Safety Building: No changes, no discussion.
= Emergency Management Agency:

Geoffrey Parkers asked if the Masonic Hall is the sole
emergency shelter in Rockport. Town Manager confirmed
that it is.

No changes.

= Public Works: Town Manager reviewed the Select Board changes.

Helen Shaw stated that in a prior budget line 7607 was put
to zero with a promise from the Select Board this would be
put back in in Fiscal Year 2020-2021. There was originally
$370,000 in this line for the Library Intersection and
Parking, then this line was reduced to just be the
intersection work. She stated that at the prior nights Select
Board meeting it was stated that the cost of the parking was
folded into the project, she feels that when people voted on
the bond, that they were under the impression that it was
solely for the building and contents. She wants to know
why it was decided to have it roll into the project costs. She
stated that the Select Board approves a contract with Phi
Builders for the parking work but that it does not express
the number of spaces or the amount. The plans that were
shown were for 14 spaces but the Select Board reduced that
number to 7 at a prior meeting. Helen expressed that the
Town is taking advantage of Phi Homes and it is
disrespectful to the Library Committee and donors to the
project and doesn’t feel that it is fair for the Library
Foundation to have to raise more money for furniture and
fixtures for the building. She feels the money for the
parking should come from the Public Works Budget.



e Motion by Helen Shaw: Move some the $300,000 shown in
line 7605 in the Public Works Budget to line 7607 and
rename that line Library Intersection and Parking, amount
to be moved $25,000. Seconded by Geoffrey Parker.

o Discussion: Town Manager stated that contract for
parking included a letter of intent from Phi to cover
the costs of the parking but remaining soft cost
money would go to Phi to offset parking. The
number of spaces is included in the plan which is
included in the appendix of the contract.

o Jeffrey Charland acknowledged the effort and
audacity to preserve over the past 10 years and
respects that worked. He expressed that it was not
clear the bond was not for the entirety of the project
and feels a lot of people felt the same.

o Geoffrey Parker asses that he recalls at one point
everything was included even the intersection work.
Felt it was reasonable for this to have been pulled
out but had the notion everything else would be
included.

o Town Manager expressed that is the Budget
Committee decides to move the money it wont
impact the contract, we won’t pay more. Jeffrey
Charland asked if it was moved where would it be
spent? Town Manager said it would not be spent on
parking, it could potentially be spent on the
intersection.

o Vote: 1 Yes, 5No, 0 Abstain

= Sanitation: No changes, no discussion.
= Library:

e Helen Shaw asked that Landscaping maintenance be
increased from $1,500 to $10,000 and increase line 7335 to
$12,500 to assist in the purchase of new stacks.

o Eric Boucher asked why this was needed?

o Helen Shaw expressed that there is no money for
landscaping. Town Manager said there is a
landscaping plan to be approved by the Select
Board, but that there is no money to implement it.
Doug Cole added that they are trying to raise money
for this work. Mark Kelley added that they are
asking for monetary donations as well as in-kind
donations for plantings and work.

o Helen Shaw said she would be okay leaving the
money out for Landscaping if there is a plan in
place.



o Jeffrey Charland asked about the 7205, money for
the stacks. Town Manager stated the Library
Foundation is raising money for that purchase

o Motion by Helen Shaw: Add $10,000 to 7205 to
assist in the purchase of new stacks. Seconded by
Geoffrey Parker.

o Geoffrey Parker stated that if we put it ($10,000 in
7205) as a Town budget item does that lessen the
amount that the Foundation must raise? Town
Manager stated that the cost of the stacks is
$71,000. Helen Shaw said she would like to be
optimistic that the money could be raised and stated
that the Library Committee has loaned the Library
Foundation $100,000 to purchase the stacks and the
Foundation will need to reimburse the Library
Committee. Helen feels the Foundation might not
be able to raise the funds with the current events in
the stock market. She feels that Town could pay this
additional cost as it should have been included in
the soft costs. Mark Kelley suggested that we would
save money by not hiring a professional moving
company. Helen Shaw added that the Library
committee is paying for that.

o Town Manager stated that he is confident that the
Foundation will be able to raise the funds needed.

o Vote: 2 Yes, 4 No, 0 Abstain

Conservation Commission: No changes, no discussion.
Parks: Town Manager reviewed the Select Board changes.

e Town Manager stated that they have approved the low
bidder for the Walker Park Seawall Project so they could
reduce this line by $15,000.

e Motion by Helen Shaw: Reduce line 7347 by $15,000
based on actual costs. Seconded by Geoffrey Parker.

o Vote: 6 Yes, 0 No, 0 Abstain.

Opera House: No changes, no discussion.
Library Building: No changes, no discussion.
Recreation: No changes, no discussion.

Debt: No changes, no discussion.

County Fees: No changes, no discussion.
Cemeteries: No changes, no discussion.
Provider Agencies: No changes, no discussion.
Schools: No changes, no discussion.

Special Assessments:

e Motion by Geoffrey Parker to reduced use of unassigned
fund balance by $15,000. Seconded by Helen Shaw.

o Vote: 6 Yes, 0 No, 0 Abstain.



» Adjourn
o Meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m.



